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l. Acronyms and Glossary of Terms

a) Acronyms

BOM

ICPAK

IPSAS

PFM

PSASB

Kshs

Board o I Managenrcnt

Institute of Certitled Public Accountants of Kenya

Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

Public Finance Management

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Kenya Shillings

b) Glossary of Terms
Fiduciary Management The key management personnel who had financial responsibi ity

Provide a list of Acronym.s and Key lerm.s used in the.financial reporl as per above exa ple
The list to be exhhustive)
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Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loun and Mortgage Scheme Funtl
Annual Rcport and [-inancial Statenrents lbr the year cnded June 30, 2023

2. Key Entity Information and Management

:r) Background information

-l'he Nairobi City County Assembly Car l.oan & Mortgage Scheme fjr,rnd is established by the

Salaries and Remuneration Circular no SRC/'I'S/WBl3l14 ol l4tl'February 2Ol4 and derives its

authority and accountability frorn Section 167 oi'the Public Finance Management Act 2012. For

proper management of the F-und and as advised by the Salaries and Remuneration Commission,

the Nairobi City County Assembly adopted 'lhe Public Finance Management (Nairobi City

County Car Loan Schemc f-und) Regulations 20l1and The Public Finance Management Q{airobi

City County Mortgage Scheme Fund) Regulation.s 2014 which has since been repealed into The

Public Finance Management Qtlairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme

Fund) Regulations 20 l7 to guide operationalization of the Fund. The Fund is wholly owned by the

County Government of Nairobi and is domiciled in Kenya.

Arising from the above provisions and as advised by the Salaries and Remuneration Commission

(SRC) ut the benefits to be enjoyed by the Members of the County Assemblies, vide circular ref

SRC/TC/CGOYT13l16 dated 27th November, 2013, the Nairobi City County Executive Committee

Member for Finance and Economic Planning authorised the establishment of the Car Loan Scheme

Fund with the approval of the County Assembly.

The Nalrobi City County Assembly Car Loan Scheme Fund is a revolving fund established

pursuant to Regulation 3 of the Public Finance Management (Nairobi City County Assembly Car

Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund) Regulations 2017 as read together with section 116 of the

Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and circulars ref SRC/TS/CAFl3l6ll49(46) from the

Salariesland Remunerations Commission dated 13th December 2017.

The Furld started operations on I 't July 201 9 as a single fund administering Car Loan and Mortgage

benefitslfor members and staff of the Nairobi City County Assembly. Prior to this date, tlle benefits

were a*ninistered from two different funds namely Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan

Scheme Fund and Nairobi City County Assembly Mortgage Scheme Fund. These two funds were

merged with effect from lttJuly 2019. The merged Funds operate under the new Regulations

namely; The Public Finance Management (Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage

Scheme Fund)Regulations 2017.'l'hese Regulations were gazetted in July 2018 and came into

force in Financial Year 201812019.
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-t'he Cterk ol the County Assenrbly. being the Accounting Ol'licer ot'tlie Assembly is the

aclnirristrator of the firnd r"as established b1' RegLrlation 6(lXg) ot't'}Lrblic Finance Mana; ement

(,\'trirobi C'ity ('ounty A.t:ernb11, ('ur Loan and .\lrtrtguge Sc'heme Frrrrtli [{egulations 2017.

b) l'rincipal Activities

The principal activity/mission/ mandate of the Fund is to purchase vehicles tbr members ar I statf

olthe County Assembly ancl to pr.u'chase, develop. renovate or repair a rcsidential propert)

'fhe tirnd's objective is to

Purchase vehicles tbr Members and statTolthe County Assembll'

ll Purchase, development. renovation or repair of residential property

c) Iloard of 'frustees/Funtl Administration Committee

Designated Chairman olthe Committ, :
Majority Leader

Deputy speaker

Majority Chief whip

Minority Chief whip

Member'

Mernber

Me rlbcr'

Member

Mcmbcr

Member

d) Key Management Team

Clerk Nairobi County Assembly

Deputy Clerk, Adnrinistrative Service ,

Director Financial Services

Principal Accoutrtant

Ag. Principal Finance Officer

I HON. PETER IMWATOK

HON. ANTHONY KIRAGU KARANJA
2

HON. PAUL KADOS

HON. MOSES OGETO4
HON. MARK MUCAMBI)
HON.WILFRED ODALO

HON. FA'|HIYA. A MOHAMMET)
6

7

ll
FION. MARTIN MRUGUA

MR. BASIL RODCERS OMONDI()

t0 MR, TITIJS MUII{UI(I

tl MS, CAROI,INF, KIt)AMI]A

I Mr. Edward O. Gichana

2 Ms. Pauline Akuku

-)
Mr. Paul W. Kimani

4 Mr. Sammy Ndana

Mr. Stephen Narnodij

6 Mr. Marvin Maina Finance Officer

Noirohi Cit.t' ('outtl.t: ;lssemhl.t' ('ur l-oun unil Mortguge Schama l:utttl
Amual llgpryt :rntl l'inanci:rl Stltcnrcnts !1r !hr1 vc:rr cntlcd .lunc .10. 202.1

l{ ef Name lPosition

J

Positionlle{ | Name
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Re ort and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

Kev E tv and Management ((:ontinued)

e) F'id ciary Oversight Arrangcments:

Senior Interual Auditor Kobia Araya Marimba

0Re tered Officcs

I) Box 45844-00100
HallBuildingCi

Ngina Street
Nai bi, KENYA

8) Fu (lontacts

Tel hone: (254) 1 0033084611 003 30847
E- l: clerk@nairobicountyassembly. go.ke
We site: www.nairobicountyassembly.go.ke

h) Fu

l.

Bankcrs

amily Bank
ity Hall Branch
O. Box 74145-00200
airobi, Kenya

ooperative Bank of Kenya
ity Hall Branch
,O. Box 44805-00200
airobi, Kenya

2
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Key I,.ntitr antl i\larragcrrrcnt (( orrtirructl)

i) lndcpe lr tlcn t /\u(litors

Auditor General
Otfice olthe Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084
GOP 00r00
Nairobi, Kenya

.i) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
State Law Oftice
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund
e rt and Financial Statements for thc ycar ended June 30,2023

3. tsoa of Trustees/ Fund Administration Committee (Or Any Other Corporate

(io rnance Body for'the Fund)

HO PETER IMWATOK Designated Chairmar.r of the Comrnittee

ANTI IONY KIRAGU KARANJAHO Majority Leader

-)
HON. PAUL KADOS Deputy Speaker'

4 HON. MARTIN MI]UGUA Designated Chairman of the Comrnittee

5
HO MOSES OGETO Majority Chief whip

6 MARK MUGAMBIH Minority Chief whip

7 WILFRED ODALOH Member

8
FAI'IIIYA. A MOHAMMET)HO Member

9 BASIL RODGERS OMONDI Member

10 1'ITIJS M(jIRIJRI Memher

ll S CAROLINE KIDAMBA Member

t2
DWARD GICHANAMr f'r,rnd Administrator

EIEI

vl ll

lle I Namr: l'os it ion



J. \lln agcrnrrr I lcarrr

Clcrk Nairotri CotLnty Assembly

Education: MIIA Accounts, BCOM Acco :nts.

cPA(K)
Year of Birth: 1975

Depr-rty Clerk Aclministrative Service

Education: Master's Cornrnunication Studier BA
Journalism & Media Studies

Year ot'Birth: 1977

Director Financial Services

Education: MBA-Strategic Management,

BCOM-Finance, CPA(K), (M)CIPS

Year of Birth: 1989

Principal Accountant
Eclucation: BBM-Finance and Banking, CPr (K)
Year of Birth: 1979

Ag. Principal Finance Officer
Education: BCOM-Finance and Banking, C A
Year of Birth: 1990

Finance Offrcer
Education: Bachelor of Economics-Finance

Ycar of Birth: 1994

Nlr. l'ldrvartl O. (lichan:r

Ms. l'luline Akuku

Mr. Paul W. Kimani

Mr. Stephen Namodi

Mr. Marvin Maina
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Nairili City County Assembly Car Loan antl Mortgage Scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Fund Chairperson's Report

Thc Nairobi City County Assen.rbly Car l-oan & Mortgage Schenre Fund is a Revolving Fund

establislred pursuant to the Salaries and Remuneration Circular no SRC/TS/WB:3:]4 of l4tt,

February 2014. Section 167 of the Public Finance Management Act 2012 mandates the

Administrator of Public Funds with preparation of Annual Financial Statemenrs.

For proper management of the Fund and as advised by the Salaries and Remuneration Commission,

the Nairobi City County Assembly adopted The Public Finance Management glairobi City
County Car Scheme Fund) Regulations 2014 which has since been repealed into The public

Finance Management (Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund)

Regulotions 2017 to guide operationalization of the Fund.

As at 30th June 2023, the performance of the Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan & Mortgage

Scheme Fund has been of steady growth as depicted by the annual performance report for the
period under review. The Scheme Fund received additional capital funds amounting to Kshs.
376'0m'000 to boost the increased uptake by the scheme fund members. In the foregoing, the
Scheme Fund has been a great success benefiting both Members and Staff of the County Assembly.

On behalf of the scheme fund administration committee known as the Loans Management
Committee, I wish to express utmost conhdence in the key management team and the secretariat
on the role they play in providing professional guidelines and advice to ensure the fund,s
operational activities are within its core mandate and in particular drive the following key strategic
theme;

r Increase uptake of Car loan and mortgage facilities by the members of County Assembly
and Staff.

r Ensure full compliance with the provisions of the Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan
and Mortgage Scheme Fund Regulations 2017.

As at 30th June 2023 the scheme fund registered a significant number of loan applications by the
Third Assembly members.

x
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Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loon ontl Mortgage Scheme Funcl
Annual Report and Financial Statemcnts for the year ended June 30, 2023

5. Report of The Fund Administrator

Over the years. thc l'und has had steady growth due to high clemand from the Membels and Stafl'

of the Curnty Assenrbly. Inclccd, new applications are received almost on a daily basis. For this

reason, the available cash resource has been dwindling, a fact that called for replenishment olthe

fund. In the tbregoing the County Assembly received additional seed capital of Kshs 376Million.

The Fund's operations picked the required momentullr within the FY2022123 as depicted in the

presented quarterly reports. Additionally, the scheme tund operations have continued without any

setbacks. The Loans Management Committee expenditure budget for the FY2023124 was

considerod, approved and adoptecl by the Committee within the year under review. Other reports

on the scheme fund were prepared and prescnted to the Committee for review, deliberations and

considerdion as well.

The Loan advances to the Second Assembly Members were fully recovered within the required

timelines. The scheme fund operations depict growth and undeterred accomplishment of its
primary objectives of providing loans to members of scheme for the purchase of vehicles; and the

purchase, development, renovation or repair of residential property. Four Members of staff

managed to clear off their car loans within the financial year under review.

Following conferment of motor vehicle reimbursement to Members of the Third House, the Loans

Managernent Committee sat and approved internal borrowing of Kshs.274.288Million from the

Scheme Fund account to cater for the said benefits. This was necessitated by the concerns raised

by the nowly elected Members who were experiencing mobility challenges in fulfilling their

mandates to the electorates. The borrowed funds were expected to be refunded back to the scheme

fund accqunt immediately upon receipt of motor vehicle reimbursement exchequer.

Consequently, the Assembly recurrent borrowings from the scheme fund account stood at

Kshs.60.t5Million as at 30tl' June 2023. The unsettlement of the borrowed funds within the

financial period of reporting was as a result of unreleased exchequer requisitions by the Controller

ofbudgei. This had extended eflfect on clearance ofborrowed funds from the scheme fund.

Additionrlly, the County Assembly Service Board recommended for the closure of the

Cooperadve Bank, City Hall branch bank account; 01141232417504 and opening ofa new scheme

fund account; 016000015578 at Family Bank, City Hall. This was endorsed by the County

Executivc Committee Member, frinance & Economic Planning pursuant to Section 119(l) of the

Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

xlt
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Appreciation

I wish tu extend special thanks to the etrtire Count)' Assenrbly Service Board. Manag( nent.

Membcls and Staft'olthe County Assernbly for dedicating tinre and effort to see the tund ar rieve

its continued success. Specitically'. Iwish to thank the lirnd management committee f r the

outstanding leadership, vision and direction. Finally. I rvish to tharrk all our stakeholders fb their

confidence in the Nairobi City County Assembly.

x t

Iitlrvard O. (Jichana

I.und Adnrinistrator



Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for thc year entled June 30, 2023

7. Statement of Perlbrmance Against thc County Fund's Predetermined Objectives

I n trod uction

Section 164 (2) (l) of the Public l"inancc Managenrent Act,2()12 requires that, at the cnd of each

financial year, the Accounting ofUcer when preparing financial statements of each County

Government Entity Government entities in accordance with the standards and formats prescribecl

by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board includes a statelnent of the county government

entity's perfbrmance against predetermined objectives.

The Nairobi City County Assembly, in cognizance of the vision and mission statements of Nairobi

County Government - which are; To make Nairobi the city oJ order and dignity', I-lope and

Opportunities for all and; To provide affordable, accessible and sustainable quality services,

enhancing community participation and creating a secure climate for political, social and

economic development through the commitment of a motivated and dedicated team respectively -
has developed its own vision, mission and strategic goals. The vision and mission statements of

the Courrty Assembly are as summarized below.

Vision, Mission, Strategic Goals and Objectives

To enable The Nairobi City County Assembly, deliver its mandate, the Assembly has developed

the following vision and mission statements;

Vision

To be the most efficient and effective legislature in promoting good govemance in Africa and

beyond.

Mission

To advaice economic, social, cultural and political aspirations of the people of Nairobi City

County tlrrough robust legislation, prudent oversight and responsive representation.

Strategif Goals

Strategit Goal l: A County Assembly that plays its triple role of legislation, oversight and

represenbtion effectivel y.

Strategic Goal 2: Well governed and managed County Assembly with sufficient institutional

capacity.

Below we provide the progress on attaining the stated objectives:

xtv
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l)rogrcss on attainnre nt of Stratcgic tlercloprrre nt oh.jcctivcs
[]clorr ltlor iclcrl is tlrc l)r'()!.lrcs,s on attailiinS tlrc stutcrl otriectir cs
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to Staff
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18.2M
ing chargeablr
it

Legislation,
Oversight and
[{cpresentation

Provide loans for
ptrrchase of
vehic les to
scheme tund
members.

Uptake ot'car
loans by the

Third Assembly
Membels.

5 Mernbers of
the 3'd Assembly
owrted cars
courtcsy ol the
scheme tund
l2 Statf
Members own
personal cars
financed through
the fund

a

a

Legislation,
Oversight and
Representation

Provide loans to
members of the
scheme fund for
the purchase,
development,
renovation or
repair of
residential
property.

Construction
/Purchase of
residential
homes by both
members of the

scheme

22 MCAs of
Third House
benefited fl'om
mortgage under
the schernc tund
89Staff
Members have
either
constructed or
purchased

residential
homes

a

a
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Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Morlgage Scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

8. Corporate Governance Statement

.l'he 
Schenre Fr,rnd was cstablishecl under the Public F'inance Managernent(Nuit'obi City ('ounty

.ls.sembly Cat' Loan antl Mortgcrgc ,\cheme ["und) Regul'ations 20 17.

Regulation 6( 1) of 1'he Public Finance Management (Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and

Mortgage Scheme Fund) Regulations 2017, infbrms thc establishment of the [.oans Management

Committee membership. '[he comnrittee constitute of I I members that comprise of:-
(a) the Leader of the Majority I']arty, who shall be the chairperson;

(b) the Leader of the Minority Party, who shall be the vice-chairperson;

(c) the Majority Whip ol the County Assembly;

(d) the Minority Whip of the County Assembly;

(e) four members of the county assembly nominated by the members of county assembly;

(f) ttuee members of staff of the County Assembly, elected by the staff of the County
Assembly; and

(g) the Clerk of the County Assembly who shall be the officer administering the l-und, an ex-
oficio member of the Committee and the secretary to the Committee.

Meetings held and the attendance

The committee sat a total of eleven sittings whose minutes of recordings were all confirmed within

the finarrcial reporting period. The registered fewer number of sittings was because the Committee

was conitituted in the second quarter after the swearing in of the Third Assembly Members and

therefore did not sit in the first quarter.

The Cohmittee is attended by all committee members. The meetings of the Committee are

convenef by the chairperson or in the absence ofthe chairperson, by the vice chairperson and in

the absehce of both, by a member designated by the chairperson and shall be convened at such

times ag may be necessary for the discharge of the Committee's functions. The quorum for

meetingl of the Committee is attained by a minimum of one third of the members.

The Sucqession plans

The conlnittee membership is derived from the provision by the Scheme Fund Regulations on the

membe6hip of the Loans Management Committee. The County Assembly Members membership

in the Ldans Management Committee is determined by the positions of the political parties after

xvt
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an electoral process. Changes in courmittee membership rvithin a uiven period is based rn the

chatrges in the leadership ot'the County Assembly ancl the successive nonrination ot'( ounty

AssemblyMemberstoserveinthecommittee.Thestafl'representtrtivesareelectedbythc: atfof
the County Assernbly.

Roles and./ilnctions oJ the Comtnittec

The committee is mandated with the role of approving scheme fund loan applications by mt nbers

of the scheme fund, supervision of the day to day operations of the tund and recommend to the

Assembly Service Board the appointment of a tinancial or mortgage institution to p ovide

administrative services of the tund.

Incluc t ion and Training

The Committee conducted one induction retreat in January 2023 after the election of Third

Assembly Members, following constitution of the comnrittee membership. Further, the con nittee

held three workshops outside the County to review the performance of the scheme fund ar I plan

for the scheme fund operational activities.

Committee and member perJbrmance

The comrnittee approved a total ol five car loan applications from Members of County Asr :mbly

and one tbr the stafl. In addition, considered and approved twenty-two mortgage loan appli, ltions

from Members of the County Assembly. This totalled to Kshs. 123.69 million.

Conflict oJ.interest

Conflict of interest arises where a member of the Loans Management Committee or men

loans office secretariat makes a loan application to be considered by the same committee, I

in. In such a scenario, the applicant is required to exempt themselves from the very con

sitting considering their loan application, to curb any possible influence ol loan appl

approva[.

ber of

rey sit

nittee

:ation

The committee members'sitting allowances is paid in accordance with provisions by the S rlaries

and Remuneration Commission circulars on payrnent of committee sitting allowances to Mr mbers

xvll
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County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund
Ann C rt and Financial Statcments for the year ended June 30,2023

of'the Assembly. Payment of secretariat allowance is pursuant to guidelines by clause 5 of

icy Paper on internal administlation of scheme tund.

c and secretariat allowances incurred in the period under review totalled to Kshs.2.1

the B

'l'he co

million
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9. Management Discussion and Analysis

The t uncls operational anrl Financial Performancc
'['he tinancial pertbrmancc ot the lrLrnd as at J0tl'.lLrne 202i is presented here',vith in accor

with the requiretnent of Section 167 of the Public Finance Managcnrent Act, 20 t2; Regulatic

of the Public lrinance Management (Nairobi C'ity Countl As.sembly (lctr l-octn ctnd Mot

Schenrc Fund) Regulations 2017; the Public Audit Act ancl the International I'ublic I

Accounting Standards. This is the 7tl' tlnancial year since inception of the tund and interest r

on the 3% repayments on all loans and from the bank has been the main source ofrevenue.

Revenue

The FLrnd total revenue as at J0th June of 2023 stood at Kshs.l9.36M.'l'his being Kshs. (

interest from daily bank balances and Kshs.l8.5M interest from 30lo interest loan repayment

Recurrent Expenditure

The total operating expenditure for the Fund as at 30th June,2023 was Kshs.l4.31M.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow from the operations of the fund are detailed in the cash flow statement for the 
1

ended 30th June 2023. The cash and cash equivalent for the Fund as at 30rh June of2023 .

Kshs.34M compared to Kshs.49.37M as at 30th June of 2022.

Funds compliance with statutory requirements

The tund continued to comply with all the applicable laws and statutory requirements.

Major Risks facing the entity.

. Legal and regulatory risks

The Fund faces legal and regulatory risks such as committee membership amendments, cou

orders thus having non-perflorming loans until when the matter is settled, and uncertainty in

constitution leadership.

.ance

r 9(t)

gage

ector

rrned

86M

eriod

,as at

t
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10. mental and Sustainability Reporting

'l heN ro iCity County Assembly did not undertake in any environmental strstainability
ilct I vl the period ended 30th June, 202i
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Principal activities

The principal activities of the Fund are to purchase vehicles tbr members and staff of the ( rulty
Assembly and to purchase, develop. renovate or repair a residential property.

Results

The results of the Fund for the year ended June 30. 2023 are set out on page | ,2,3,4 & S .

Trustees

The members of the Board of Trustees who served during the year are shown on page viii.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Fund in accordance with . rticle
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 20 1 5.

By Order of the Board

Chair of the Fund Administration Committee

l)a te:
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Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

12. Statement of Management's Responsibilities

Section t67 of the Pttblic Finance Managenrent Act. 2012 reqLriles that, at the enct oleach tlnancial
year, the Administrator of a Courrty Purblic FLrnd established by Regulation 9(t) of the Public
Finatrce Managetnent Qttairobi City County A.ts'embly Car Loan ancl Mortgage Scheme Fund)
Regulations 2017 shall prepare financial statements tbL ttre Fund in accordance with the stanclards
and formats prescribed by the Public Sector Accournting Standards Board.

The Administrator of the County Public Fund is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
the Fund's financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state ot'alfairs of the Fund for
and as at the end of the financial year ended on June 30 2023. This responsibility includes: (i)
malntaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be
effect ive throughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position ofthe Fund; (iii) designlng, implementing
and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the frnancial
statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or
fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the Fund; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Administrator of the County Public Fund accepts responsibility for the Fund's financial
statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with Inteinational Public Sectoi
Accounting Standards 0PSAS), and in the manner required by the PFM Act, 2Ol2 and public
Finance Management Qttairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund)
Regulations 2017. The Administrator of the Fund is of the opinion that the Fund's financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of Fund's transactions during the financial year
ended June 30,2023, and of the Fund's financial position as at that date. The Administrator further
confirmthe'completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Fund, which have been relied
upon in the preparation of the Fund's financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of
internal financial control,

In preparing t}le financial statements, the Administrator of the County Public Fund has assessed the
Fund's ability to continue as a going concern and disclosed, as applicable, matters relating to the use
of going concem basis of preparation of the financial statement;. OR

Nothing has come to the attention of the Administrator to indicate that the Fund will not renain a
going concern for at least the next t'welve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The Fund s financial statements v/ere approved by the Board on ..,*t i.+.i. i
on its behalf b

2024 and signed

Administrator of the County Public Fund

xxtl
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON NAIROBI CITY COUNW ASSEMBLY CAR
LOAN AND MORTGAGE SCHEME FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 oi the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Acl, 20'12 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adverse Opinion

I have a.rdited the accompanying financial statements of Nairobi City County Assembly
Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund set out on pages 'l lo 41, which comprise of the
statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial

I

PREAMqLE
I

I draw ycirr attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:
;

A. ne#rt on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accfunting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on dre financial statements.

Repot of le Arditor-General on Nairobi City County Assembly Cor Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund for the year
ended 30 hne, 2023



tperformance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in
accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35
of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly the
financial position of the Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme
Fund as at 30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and do not comply with Public Finance Managemenl Act,2012.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. lnaccuracy of lnterest lncome

The statement of financial performance reflects interest income amounting to
Kshs.19,363,000 as further disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements. However, the
amount differs with the total interest income amounting Kshs.18,500,987 extracted from
the monthly ledgers resulting in unexplained variance of Kshs.862,013.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of interest income amounting to
Kshs.19,363,000 could not be confirmed.

2. UnsupportedCommitteeAllowances

The statement of financial performance reflects use of goods and services amounting to
Kshs.14,309,000. The amount includes committee allowances amounting to
Kshs.2,098,000 as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. Review of records
revealed that the committee allowances expenditure includes Kshs.1,165,400 which was
not supported with invitation letters, attendance registers, and committee meeting minutes.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and propriety of the commiftee allowances amounting
to Kshs.1,165,400 could not be confirmed.

3. Unsupported Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions (motor
vehicle reimbursement) and receivables from exchange transactions (cash transfers)
amounting to Kshs.274,288,000 and Kshs.60,546,000, respectively, all totalling
Kshs.334,834,000. However, no documentary evidence in support of the amount was
provided. Further, the amount has not been disclosed as borrowing in the statement of
financial position.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of receivables from exchange transactions (motor
vehicle reimbursement) and receivables from exchange transactions (cash transfers)

Report of the Audilor-General on Nairobi City County Assembly Cor Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fundfor the year
ended 30 June, 2023
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amounting to Kshs.274,288,000 and Kshs.60,546,000, respectively, could not be
confirmed.

4. lnaccuracy of Total Net Assets and Liabilities

The statement of financial position reflects total net assets and liabilities totalling
Kshs.1,101,712,000. The amount includes revolving fund amounting to
Kshs.1,096,659,000. However, the amount differs with revolving fund amounting to
Kshs.1,016,000,000 reflected in the statement of changes in net changes resulting to
unexplained variance of Kshs.80,659,000. Further, the amount includes accumulated
surplus amounting to Kshs.5,054,000 which differs with accumulated surplus amounting to
Kshs.85,712,000 reflected in the statement of changes in net changes resulting to
unexplained variance of Kshs.80,658,000.

ln addition, the statement of changes in net changes reflects adjustment to accumulated
surplus amounting to Kshs.2,254,000 which was not supported with journal entry.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness total net assets and liabilities totalling
to Kshs.1,101,712,000 could not be confirmed.

5. !naccuracies in Transfers from the County Assembly

The statement of changes in net assets reflects fund received during the year amounting
to Kshs.376,000,000 in respect of transfers from the County Assembly. However, the
amount differs with the transfers to the Fund amounting to Kshs.439,044,296 reflected in
statement of receipts and payments of the County Assembly resulting in unreconciled
variance of Kshs.63,044,296.

Further, the statement of cash flows reflects transfers to the Nairobi City County Assembly
totalling Kshs.102,152,000. However, the statement of receipts and payments of the
Nairobi City County Assembly reflects an amount of Kshs.60,346,051 under other receipts
from fund account resulting in an unreconciled variance of Kshs.41 ,805,949.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of fund received during the year
amounting to Kshs.376,000,000 could not be confirmed.

6. lnaccuracies in the Statement of Cash Flows

A review of the statement of cashflows revealed the following anomalies:

6.1 lnaccuracy of Total Receipts from Operating Activities

The statement of cash flows reflects total receipts from operating activities amounting to
Kshs.395,363,000. The amount includes transfers from the County Government amounting
to Kshs.376,000,000 in respectof the revolving fund which is notan operating activity.

6.2 Inaccuracy of Gash Transfers to Nairobi City County Assembly (NCCA)

The statement of cash flows reflects transfers to NCCA amounting to Kshs.102,152,000.
However, a review of cash book revealed thatKshs.l 10,029,937 was transferred resulting
to an unexplained variance of Kshs.7,877 ,937. Further, the amount has not been reflected
in the statement of financial position as a receivable.

Report of the Auditor-General on Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fundfor the year
ended 30 June, 2023 
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6.3 Inaccuracy of Repayment of Borrowing

The statement of cash flows reflects repayment of borrowings amounting to
Kshs. 108,022,000 received from the County Assembly in respect of repayment of domestic
borrowings as disclosed in Note 22 lothe financial statements. However, the amount has
not been reflected in the statement of financial position. Further, review of records revealed
that Kshs.67,703,949 was received resulting to unreconciled variance of Kshs.40,318,051.

ln addition, Note 22 to the financial statements reflects borrowings totalling
Kshs.268,418,000 which have not been reflected in the statement of financial position.
Review of the bank reconciliation statement revealed payments in the bank statement not
yet recorded in the cashbook amounting to Kshs.5,095,008 which was described as
borrowing refund. However, the refund was not supported by any documentary evidence
and the date of the transaction.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the statement of cash flows could
not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSA|s). I am independent of the Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and
Mortgage Scheme Fund Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I

have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance
with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audit of financial statements in
Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matter

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements, Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources, and Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and
Governance which have remained unresolved.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, because of the significance of the matters
discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources sections of my report, based on the audit

Report of the Auditor-Generol on Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Morlgage Scheme Fund for the year
ended 30 June, 2023
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Basis for Gonclusion

lrregular Transfer of Funds

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of law

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about
whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern
them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENTAND
GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

Basis for Conclusion

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal controls, risk management and governance.

Report of the Auditor-General on Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan ond Mortgage Scheme Fundfor the year
ended 30 Juse, 2023
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Review of the cash book revealed that a total of Kshs.113,851,937 was transferred to the
Nairobi City County Assembly during the year. The amount includes transfers totalling
Kshs.53,305,937 which had not been approved by Nairobi City County Executive County
Executive Committee Member . This is contrary to Section 154(1) (a) of the Public Finance
Managemenl Act, 2012 which states that an Accounting Officer shall not authorize the
transfer of an amount that is appropriated to another County Government entity or person.

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the PublicAuditAct,20l5, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of my report, based on
the audit procedures performed, I confirm that, internal controls, risk management and
overall governance were not effective.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.



ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Fund's
ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless Management
is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of lhe Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors
compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective
processes and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSA|s will always detect a
material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution and
submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that

Report of the Auditor-General on Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fundfor the year
ended 30 June, 202 3
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might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in

which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in

amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies and
procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSA|s, I exercise professionaljudgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

a

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability
to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a

a Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

Report of th( Auditor-General on Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund for the year
ended 30 JtAe. 202i
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ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

a

a



I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeg uards.

FCPA , CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

21March,2024

Report of the Auditor-General on Nairobi City County Assenbly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme
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l,l. Sta ment of Financial Perlbrmancc for the Year E,nded 30tl' June 2023

Rcvcn e From Non-Exchange Transactionsu

Public Contributions and Donations I

Transfers From the County Government 2

ENE enalties and Other Levies -)

Revenue From Exchange Transactions

Interes Incomet 4 19,363 19,967

Other Income )

Total Revenue 19,363 19,967

EE
Employee Costs 6

Use ofgoods and services 7 t4,309

Depreciation and Amortization Expense tt

Finance Costs 9

Total Expenses 14,309 16,238

Other Gains/Losses

Gain/Loss on Disposal of Assets l0

11

Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period 5,054 3,728

@

@

Name:
Atl

dward O. Gichana
trator of the Fund

Name: Paul W. Kimani
Director Financial Services
ICPAK Member Number: 18731ICP Member Number:,1922

i nur" I YY2022t23
-+-

lr.shs0()0

FY202lt22

Kshs00l)

16,238



Nairohi Cit.t'County Assembl.rC'ur l-onu unl L,lortgnte .schcmc l.'und
Annual ll.cport irntl F inrncill Statcnrcrrts for thc vcar cn tlctl ,lunc 30. 2(l2l

15. Slatcnrcrrt ol' l"irrancial Positiorr ,\s lt -l() ,lurrc 202.1

45,77 I

s 2,840

oo 417

t65 028

553 503

553 50J

718 53r

't t4 803

3,728
718 5Jl

r\ssets
( rrrretrt..\sscts
Ce{qnd Cash Equivalents t2 34,008
Current Portion of [.ong- Terrn Receivables Frorn
Exchange l larrsactions I3 88,6 r4
Pre'paynrcrrts l1
Irrventolies l5
Receivables Ir'or-n Exchange Transactions (Cash Transfers) 60,546
Receivables tiorn Exchange Transactions (Motor Vehicle
Re irnbursern e nt) 274,288
lnvestments in financial assets l6
'l otaI cu lrcrrt asscts {57.456

Non-Current Assets
Ploperty, Plant and Equiprnent t7
Intangible Assets l8
Long Terrn Receivables from Exchange Transactions li 642,129
Investment Property l9
I'otal non- current assets 642,129
Total Assets 1,099,585

l,iubilities
Curr€nt Liabilities
Trade and Other [']ayables from Exchange 'l'ransactions 2o
Current Portion of Borrowings 2t
Ernployee Benefit Obligations 22

Social benefit liabilities 23

Total currcnt liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Portion of Borrowings 2l
Non-Current Employee Benefit Obligation 22

Social benefit liabilities 23

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Revolving Irund 1,094,51 I

Reserves

Accurnulated Surplus 5,054
Total Net Assets and t,iabilities l,099,585

FY2022t23 y202tn2
Kshs IXX) (shs ()00

2
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'l-he policies and explanatory notes to these tinancial statements form an integral part

ot'the fi I statcnlents. The entity financial statenlents wel'e approved on l lth January, 2024
and sign

Name: ard O. (Jichana Name: aul W. Kimani
Ad
ICP

r of the Fund
ber Nurnber:4922

Director Financial Services
I CPAK Member Number: 1873 I
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N u i ro b i (' i l-t' (' o u n l)',,1 s s e m h l.r' (' u r I -o a n u t t I :ll o r tg u g a l.- r t n d
Annual llcport anrl I inancial Strrtcnrents for thc rcar cntlctl .lurrc .11),, 202.1

l(r. Statcnrcnt ()f ( lranges in \ct ..\sscts lirr tlre r car cntletl J0'1, .lunc 201-3

I otal

70t 55-1

71. tt03

7l; tt0.1

7rt 531

7lt 531

1,091 585

4

llalance as at I Jull' 2020 74,068

SLU'plus/(dcficit) for the period

Funds received during the year

640,(X)0

735

Revaluation gain

Adjustments (+/-)

llalance as at 30 June 2021 640,000 74,801

Balancc as at I July 2021 640,000 74,803

Surplus/(deficit) tbr the period

Funds received during the year

Revaluation gain

Adjustments (+/-)

Ilalance as at 30 ,lune2022 640,000 78,5-l I

Balance as at I July 2022 640,000 78,531

Surplus/(deficit) for the period 5,054

Funds received during the year 376,000

Revaluation gain

Adjustments (+/-)

Balancc as at 30 Junc 2023 1,016,000 83,585

Revalu ationRevolving Accumulated
surplusFund Reserve

lGhs 000 Kshs 000 Kshs 000 K"h, 000

3,728
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17. Sta ent of Cash Florvs for The Year Enclecl 30 June 2023

(lash flow from operating activities

Receipts

ributions and clonationsPublic con

3 76,000Transf'ers I 'om the county government

19,363 19,966Interest rec :ived

)m other operating activitiesReceipts fr

39s,363 19,966Total rece pts

Paymcnts

Fund admi ristratron expenses ( 14,309) ( 16,238)

General ex )enses

Finance co ;t

24Other payr rents

Net cash f ows from operating activities 381,054 3,728

Cash flow r from investing activities

Purchase o

Intangible

: property, plant, equipment and

rssets (-) (-)

Proceeds f om sale of property, plant & equipment

Proceeds f om loan principal repayments 43,847 1l 1,959

Loan disbr rsements paid out (t68,246) (79,703)

Cash Tran fers to NCCA 22 (102,ts2) (66,417)

Cash Tran fers from Fund Account (Motor Vehicle Reimbursement) 22 (274,288)

Net cash I ows used in investing activities (500,839) (34,161)

Cash flow i from financing activities

Proceeds { om revolving fund receipts

Additional borrowings

Repaymer :of borrowings r08,022

Nct cash I ows used in financing activities 108,022

Net incre:
Eq u ivaler

se/(decrease) in cash & cash

ts (11,763)

5

I xotcl)cscriptiof
I

I

Fy202U22

Kshs 000 Kshs 000
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Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and M. -gage Fund

18. Statement Of Comparison Of Budget And Actual Amounts For The Period

Kshs'000'Kshs'000'Kshs'000'Kshs'000'Revenue

Public Contributions and

Donations

Transfers From County Golt
114.4%2,44319,36316,92016,920Interest Income

Other Income
114.1'2,44319,36316,92016,920Total Income

Expenses

94.23%(871)(14,246)(15,117)(15,r r7)
Fund Administration
Expenses

10.84%(526)(64)(5e0)(se0)General Expenses

Finance Cost
9l.lu"h(1,397)(14,309)(15,706)(15,706)Total Expenditure
355.5%,3,8395,0531,2141,214Surplus For The Period

Budget notes

t. The budget underutilization was brought abour by lack ofoperations in thefirst quarter since the commitlee had not been cunstiluled

rt and Financial Statements for the

Final budget

Actual on
comprrrblc

basis

I Pot frrr.r.

differeuce
Yo

U_tix1{io1

2023

ents

2023 2023 2023 2023 2023

Kshs'000'



Nairobi City Count) Assembly as an entity is cstablishecl b1 the County Goverrrrncrrr r\ct. 20 2

and derivcs its authority and accountability fiorn I'he Public []inance Management Act,20 L.
1'he entity is rvholly owned by the Nairobi City County Govcrrrment and is domicilecl in Kenl t.

The entity's principal activity is Representation. Oversight and Legislation.

2. Statenren t of compliance antl basis of preparation

The Fund's tlnancial statements have been prepared in accordance rvith and cornply wi r
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The financial staternents a e

presented in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and rcporting currency ofthe Fund. Tl e

accor.rnting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented. The financi l

statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, unless stated otherwise. The ca r

flow statetnent is prepared using the direct method.'lhe flnancial statements are prepared r r

accrual basis.

3. Adoption ofnew and revised standards

(i) New and amended standards and interpretations in i.s:;ue but nol yet effective in the year
ended 30 June 2023

IPSAS 4l: Financial

Instruments Applicable: I't January 2023

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financia

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevan

and useful information to users ol financial statements for thei

assessrnent of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity'

future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more usefu

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model fo

financial assets that considers the characteristics ofthe asset'

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

Nuiuthi Cit.t' C'ount.l'.,l.t5cmhl.1, ('ur l.ourt ald Mortsur!( Stltanrc l;untl
,f1ng"l li,cp,r't :r_rrrl FilancialStntgl!_clll lirr the ycar crrrlctl .lurrc i0. 202J

19. Notcs to thc F inancial Statcnrents

l. (Jcnu:rI In lirrtnatiorr

ti

E ffective date and impactStandarrl
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hi Ci\, (11un1y Asseruhly Cur Loun and Morlgage Scheme Funtl
al Report and Financial Statements for the year endetl June 10,2023

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all financial instrLrments subject to

irnpairrnent testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangernents in scope of the guidance.

The model develops a strong link between an Entity's risk

managernent strategies and the accounting treatment for

instrurnents held as part of the risk management strategy.

IIP

tle

iAS 42: Social

lefits

Applicable: l'( January 2023

-fhe objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users ofthe financial

statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Entity;

(b) The key features of the operation ofthose social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

4 I

I n!

Ar

ot
res

rendments to

rer IPSAS

ulting from IPSAS

Financial

truments

Applicable: I't January 2023

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to

the components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

9
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Nuinthi Cil.t' ('rttrnt!, rlsscnthll,('ur Lrnn und tVorlgugc.st:ltctttt' L'urt
,.\rrnual Rcllort anrl linnrrcial Stit(cnrcnts lirr thc vcat'cnrlcti ,l u rre -10. 2l)2J

Arnendrnents to TPSAS 33. to updatc thc uuidance on classilyin

tinancial irrstrurnents orr initial adoption ol accrual basis IPSA

which 'ur ere inadvertently omitted rvherr l[,SAS 4l ',vas issued.

Applicable l" January 2023

. IPSAS 22 Disclosm'e of Financiul Inforntalion about the Gcnerc

(iovernntc nt Sector.

Arnendrnents to refer to the latest Systerrr of National Accounts (SN1

2008).

o IPSIS 39; Entployee Bene.fits

Now deletes the term colnposite social security benefits as it is n

longer defined in IPSAS.

r IPSAS 29t Financial instruments: Recognition an

Meas u rement

Standard no longer included in the 202 I IPSAS handbook as it is nor

superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable frorn I'r January 2023

(ii) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet e/fective in the yeat
ended 30 June 2023.

Applicable l't Januory 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognitio ,

measurement, presentation, and disclosure ofleases. The objective s

to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in I

manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This informatir r

gives a basis lor users o[financial statements to assess the eflect th t

leases have on the financial position, financial performance ar I

cashflows of an Entity.

The new starrdard requires entities to recognise, measure and prese t

information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

Applicable I't January 2025

'[he Standard requires.

Other improvcnrents

to IPSAS

IPSAS 4J

IPSAS 44: Non-

Current Assets Held

for Sale and

t0

Standard Il'ti'ctir e rlatc antl impact

I,lffcctile date and inrSta ndard pact:
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Counly Assembl.v Car Loan und Mortguge Schamc Fund
ort and Financial Statements for the year entled .lune 30, 2023

( iii it adoption of sta nda rtls

lrn ty did not early - adopt any new or amendccl standards in the financial year 2023

Assets that nreet the critelia to be classified as held for sale to be

nleasured at the lower ot'carrying anloLlnt and tair value less costs to

sell and the depreciation ofsuch assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statement of fi nancial perfortnance.

NS

in ucd

I

ll

Standartl I Pnectl r e datr and inrpact:



Nuinthi Cit-t' (ourtt-y' .1ssamhl.t. ('ur Loutt uttd ilf ttrtgurc,\r'huttr l;uttrl
Annual lleport antl l irrirrrci:rl Statenrcnts Iirr tlrc vclr crr rlctl .lu nc J(). 202J

2. Signiticant,.\ccounting l'olicics

a) llcrenuc rccogn itio rr

i. Reventrc from non-erchange transactions

Transfers from other governnrent entities

Revettues from non-exchange transactions with other governnlent entities are rneasurecl at Ii r
value and recognized on obtaining control ofthe asset (cash. goods, services and property) f
the transfer is lree frorn conditions and it is probable that tlre economic benefits or servi, 3

potential related to the asset rvill flow to the entity and can be measured reliably.

ii. Revenue from exchange transactions

I ntercst income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield rnethod. The effective yield discoun s

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's n t
carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determir :
interest income each period.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions lnust be recognized when the shareholder's or the Entity s

right to receive payments is established.

ILental inconre

Rental income arising [r'om operating leases on investment properties is accounted fbr on I
straight-line basis over the lease terrns and included in revenue.

b) Budget information

The original budget for FY2023 was approved by the county Assembly. Subsequent revisio s

or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with specil :
approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to tl :
original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude tl a

final budget. Accordingly, the Fund recorded additional appropriations of Kshs.376M on tl e

FY2022123 budget following the goveming body's approval.

The entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditu a

disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual ba.. s

using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the staternent of financial performanc 
',

whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements we :
recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the san ,
basis as the approved budget. A comparison ol budget and actual amounts, prepared on a

comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison f
budget and actual amounts.

t2



Nairobi Citl' ('ount.t' Assembl_t' Cur Loan and Mortgugrr Scheme Fund
Anrual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended ,lune J0, 2023

Summary of Signiticant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A sfatement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement ol
corfpalison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the staternent of financial
perfonnance has been preserrted under section xxx ol these financial statements.

c) Property, plant and equipnrent

All property, plant and equiprnent are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ol
the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment alc required to be replacecl

at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific uselul lives and

depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equiprnent as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
surplus or defrcit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil
or nbminal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

d) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initiatly recognized at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
arnortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,

excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in
surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lit'e of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

e) Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the replacement cost of components olan existing investment property at the

tine that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-

day maintenance of an investment property. Investment property acquired through a non-
exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date of acquisition. (The County
Apembly Scheme Fund operations does not involve investment property acquired
thhough non-exchange transactions, therefore could not make any disclosure in this
regard) [nvestment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or
when the investment property is perrnanently withdrawn from use and no future econom ic

benefit or service potential is expected lrom its disposal. The dillerence between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in
thc period ol de-recogn ition.

ln {ditiorr to thc Basis difllerence. adjustrnents to anror-rnts in thc tlnancial statenlents ale also
ma{e tbr differerrces in the lorrnats and classiflcation sclremes adopted tbr the presentation of'
the ifinancial statcnlents and the approvecl budget.

l3
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Summary of Significant Accounting I'olicics (Continued)

l) F inancial instru nr cn ts

IPSAS 4l addresses the classitication, rlleasurernent and de-recognition ot tinancial asscts ar I
finarrcial liabilities. introduces new rules tbr hedge accounting and a new irrrpairment rnod I

tbr financial assets. fre entit.r'tloes not lrur'c any hetlge relalkn.ships und tlrcrefore thc nc v

hedge uccounting rules have rto impacl ttn thc Contpany's.financial .\totenrcnts. (ontentl , s

appropriote). A tlnancial instrutnent is atty corrtract that gives rise to a tinancial asset of or :
entity and a financial liability or equity instrunrent of another entit),. At initial recognition. tl :
entity tmeasures a tlnancial asset or financial liability at its fair vatue plus or nrinus, in the ca :
ofa financial asset or financial liability not at lair value through surplus or detlcit, transacti( I
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the flnancial asset or financi I

liabitity.

Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

The entity classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at arnortised cost, fair valr :
through net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both tl :
entity's managelnent model for tlnancial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics . I
the financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset s

held rvithin a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to colle t
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms o[ the financial asset give rise on specifir I
dates to cash flows that are solely payrnents of principal and interest on the princip I

outstanding. A financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is he I
within the managelnent model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractu I

cashflows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give ri :
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenS of principal and interest on tl :
principal amount outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplr s

or deficit unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unle s

an entity has made irrevocable etection at initial recognition for particular investments in equi y

instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Based on the business model and the cash t'low characteristics, the entity classifies its financi I

assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instrurnents. Movements in fz r
value are presented in either surplus or dcficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certa 'r

criteria being met.

t4



Nainohi City Cou,,ry Assen$l.t' Cur Loutt und Mortguge Scheme Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30' 2023

Sul(mary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
I

Am{rtized cost
I

Finafrcial assets rhat are held fbr collection ol contractual cash florvs wherc those caslt florvs

reprdsent solely payments of'principal and interest. and that are not desigrrated at fhir value

thro{eh surplus or deficit. are measured at anloftized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that

is srlbsequently measured at arnortized cost and is not part ol a hedging relationship is

recof,nized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or inrpaired. Interest income f}om

thesd financial assets is included in finance iucotne using the effective interest rate rnethod.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the

finarlcial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

interEst, are measured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying

amount are taken through net assets, except lor the recognition of impairment gains or losses,

interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deficit.

Intercst income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the elfective

intertst rate method.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/

equity are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity

manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of
the assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trade and other receivables

Tra& and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

amopnts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An

estirnate is made ofdoubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the

year end.

Imppirment

The bntity assesses, on a forward-tooking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated

withi its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The

entit! recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. Criticat estimates and

signlficant judgments made by management in determining the expected credit loss (ECL) are

set &t in Nole xx.

l5
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Significant Accounting Policies (Contin uetl)

F'innncial liabili tic.s

Classificntion

The entity classitles its liabilities as subsequently rneasured ar arnoltized cost except t r
tlnancial liabilities measured through profit or loss.

g) Inventories

lnventory is measurecl at cost upon initial recognition.'l'o the extent that inventory was receivr I
through non-exchange transactions (lor no cost or for a nominal cost). the cost of the invento y

is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted f< .,

as follows:

F Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

) Finished goods and work in progress: cost ofdirect materials and labour and a proportir I
of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excludir l
borrowing costs

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of, cost and net realizable valu
However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or tbr I
nomirral charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replaceme t
cost.Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, le s

the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchang ,
or distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed lor utilization r
consumption in the ordinary course ofoperations ofthe Entity.

h) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obtigation (legat or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benef s

or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be ma, :
ol the amount of the obtigation. Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to I :
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as 1

separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually ce(ain. The expense relating to ar y

provision is presented in the statement of financial perforrnance net of any reimbursement.

i) Social Benefits

Social benefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households th t
meet the eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the eff'ects of social risks and iii) Address the need I
society as a whole. The entity recognises a social benefit as an expense for the social bene t
scheme at the sarne tirne that it recognises a liability. The liability for the social benefit schen e

is measured at the best estimate of the cost (the social benefit payments) that the entity w t

incur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability.

l6



Nuirobi Cil.l, 6ou,rrt Ossemhly Cur Loun and Mortgage Scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year cnded June 30,2023

Summary o.f Signi/icunt Acutunting Prtlicies (Continued)

Conlingen t assets

-l'he pntity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses cletails ofa possible asset whose

exis$nce is contingent orr the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or rnore uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the E,rrtity in the notes to the flnancial statements.

Con{ngent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
refl{ted in the financial statements. lf it has become virtually certain that an inflow of
econbmic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably,
the qsset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial staternents of the period in
whidr the change occurs.

k) Nature and purpose of reserves

'fhe Entity creates and maintains reserves in terrns of specit'ic requirements. Entity to slate the
resewes maintained and appropriate policies adopted.

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects
of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is
impract ical.

m) Employee benefits - Retirement benefit plans

The pntity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution
plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a

sepatate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contlibutions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
empbyee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the
payrtent of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become
payable.

Defilped benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans.
The fefined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method
basi{ Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future
cont{ibutions on proporlional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump
sum layments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

t7

j) Cnntingent linbilities
I

The p,ntitl does not recognize a ct.rntingent liability but discloses details olany ctrntingencies
in ttp notes to thc t'inancial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources

ernb{dying econornic benetits or service potential is remote.
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Summarl of Signit'icont Accounting Policies (Continueil)

n) Foreign cu rrency transirctions

J ransactions in foleign currencies are initially accor.lntecl tbr at the lulirrg rate of exchange r r
the date ol the trarrsaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in loreign currenc) il 3

rcported at the statenlerrt offinancial position rcporting date by applying the exchange rate r r

that date. Exchange ditferences arising frorn thc settlement of creditors. or from the reportir .r

olcreditors at rates dift'erent fronr those at which they rverc initially recorded during the perir.r
ale recognized as inconre or expenses in the pcliod in rvlrich they arise.

o) Borrowing cos ts

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualitying assets as part ol property, plant ar I
equipment. Such borrorving costs are capitalized over the period during rvlrich the asset is beit E

acquired or constructed and borrowings havc been incr.rrred. Capitalization ceases wh, r
construction oF the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement f
financial performance.

p) ltelated parties

'l'he Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert contr I

individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice verr ..

Members of key management are regarded as related parties and cornprise the directors, t e

CEO and senior managers.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on harrd and cash at bank, short-term deposits on cr I

and highly liquid investments with an original rnaturity of three months or less, which a e

readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk ofchang s

in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and .t

various commercial banks at the end of the financial year. For the purposes ofthese financi .l

statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances c
authorised public officers and./or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for .t

the end of the financial year.

r) Comparative figures

Where necessary conrparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended
reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

r
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Nuirobi Cil-v Counry Assemhly Car Loun und Mortguge Scheme Furul
Annual Report and Financial Statements lbr the year entlcd June 30,2023

Summary o/ Sigtt(icanl Accounting Policies (Continued)

5. Slgnificant.judgments and sources of estinr:rtion rrnccrtaint-v

I'he preparation ol tllc Entity's financial statclnents in conlormity with IPSAS reqttires

Inanpgernent to ntake judgments, estimates and assunrptions that aft'ect the reported amotlnts

ofrcvenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure ofcontingent liabilities, at the

end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estilnates could

resuft in outcolnes that require a material adjustrnent to thc carrying alnount ol the asset or

liabllity aflcctcd in lirture periods.

StatF alljudgernents, estimates and assumptions rnade e.g.

a) Estimates and assumptions -
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at

the leporting clate, that have a significant risk olcausing a material adjustment to the carrying

am6nrnts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.'I'he Entity
bassd its assumptions and estimates on pararneters available when the consolidated financial
stat6ments were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future

developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control
ofthe Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140.

b) Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use and value from disposal:

F The condition of the asset based on the assessment ofexperts employed by the Entity

) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and
processes

D The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed

D Availability of funding to replace the asset

) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

c) Provisions

Prof isions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
avallable. Additionat disclosure of these estimates of provisions is inctuded in Note xxx.

Prolrisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the pbligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is
ma&rial.

(ln\lude provisions applicable for your organisation e.g provisionfor bad debts, provisions of
obsplele stocks and how management estimates the.se provisions)

l9



,\'uircbi ('it)' ( (,unt-t' .,l.sstmhll. ('ur l.ourt trnl ;l[ttrtgugt Sthcnrc l.'urtl
..\nrrual ltcport anrl Financial Stntcntcnts lirr tlrc rcar crtrletl .lu nc .l(). 2()2J

Donation Frorn Development Partners

Contributions Frorn The Public
'l otl l

(r. Notes 'l o l lrc f irranciaI Stltcnrcnts

l. l'rrhlic corrtrillutiorrs arrrl tlonirtiorrs

(P rovide brief explanation for this revenue)

2. Transfers from County Government

3. Fines, penalties and other lcvies

(Provide brief explanation for this revenue)

4. Interest income

t6,931

I,72

l,l0

Transfers From County Govt. -Operations

Payments By County On Behalf Of The Entity

Unconditional Development grants
-I'otal

Late Payment Penalties

Fines

Total

Interest Income from Mortgage Loans 18,09 r

Interest lncome From Car Loans 4ll
lnterest Income From Investments in financial
assets

lnterest Income On Bank Deposis ti6l

Total lnterest Income 19,36J

20

19,96',

Description

Descriptiou

FY2022/23

K.shs0l)0

yY2!?w:
KsIslX)l)

Fy202t/22

Ii.shs(X)0

FY2022tt3

Kshs000

__ Fv202tn2

IGhs000
Description

Descripti,on
FY202Zn3 FY202tn2

Ituhs000 I(shs000



5

Nui hi City Atunty Assemhly Cur Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund
An al Re ort and Financial Statements for the year endetl .lune 30, 2023

(P ide brieJ explanation.fbr lhi:; revcnue)

Not to the Financial Statements ('ontinued

thcr inconrc

6 mployee (bsts

7 se of Goods and Services

trance RecoveriesIns

lnc

Ba,

ome from Sale of Tender Documetrts

I debts recovered

M I ;cellaneous lncomc

To lal Other Incomc

Sai aries And Wages

Ste ff Gratuity

St, ffTraining Expenses

So :ial Security Contribution

otl rcr (SpeciJy)

To tal

G{neral Office Expenses 14,246 13,241

Lmn Processing Costs

Prffessionat Services Costs

Administration Fees

Cqmmittee Allowances 2,770

Bank Charges 63 212

Electricity And Water E,xpenses

Fuel And Oil Costs

Insurance Costs

Postage And Courier

2t

Description
Fy2022t23

Kshs00l)

FY202,tn2

l(shs00(l

Description
Fy2027/23 Fv202tD2

Ituhs000 Kshs000

I)escription
FY2022123

Kshs000

Bv202tn2

Kshs000



Kshs(XX)
Description

l'rirrtirr!.1 A rtcl S t:r t io rrc lr
[(ental Costs

S.."ity Corts

Telephone And Comrntrnication E.xpenses

Bank Chargcs

Audit Fees

Provision For Doubthrl Debts

Other (Specify)

Social benefi t expenses*

Fy2022t23 FY202u2

Kshs(X),

Total

[i. Depreciation and r\rnortization Expense

Property Plant and Ecluiprnent

lntangible Assets
'l'otal

9. Finance costs

lnterest On Bank Overdrafts

lnterest On Loans Frorn Banks

Total

10. Gain/(loss) on disposal ofassets

Property, Plant and Equipment

lntang ib lc Asscts

I {,3{)9

'l'ota I

22

Nuinthi ('it.t' ( ounll' .,l.ssLrtrhl.t' ('ur Loun und t\IortgugL, .lt.huttc t-utt
Annuul lteJrort anrl Finarrci:rl Statcmcnts lirr the-rcar crrrlcrl ,tunc .}ll. l02J

FY202Zn3

I .t.

16,23:

IGhs000

FV20_2tn2

Kshs000

\y_29?241
Kshs000

FY20Z,|n2

Ituhs000
Description

Description

Description
Fyz022n3 FY202ln2

I(shs000 Kshs000



i City County Assemhly Cnr Loun und Mortgage Schemc Funtl
Ann port and Financial Statements for the year ended June J0' 2023

I l. n/ (loss) on ['air Value Investments

12. h and cash eq u ivalen ts

lnvestnlents at I;air Valtre- Equity investments

Irair va lue - Investntent property

Fair value- other financial assets (speci[Y)

Total Gain

45,77134,008Ca Loan & Mortgage Account

Fi: sits Account

Or - Catl Deposits

Cr nt Account

Or rs (Specify)

45,,77134,008T( ash And Cash EquivalentsC

23

Fyz0!tr72

Kslrs000 K^shs00{)

Description
Fv20z2n3 FY202tn2

Kshs000 Kshs000



Nuinthi Cit1. C'outrt.t. Asvmhl.r Lar Loun uul llortuugt,s<.ltanrc [:und
i\nnual llcport anrl Firrirncial Statcmcnts for thc r r:rr crrrlcrl .lunc 3(1. 202J

a) Fixetl Deposits Accou n t

Kenya Commercial Bank

Equity Bank. Etc

Suh- Total

!) On - Call Deposits

Kenya Commercial Bank

Equity Bank - Etc

Suh- Total

c) Cu rrent Account
Family Bank(City Hall Branch) 0r60000r5578 23,736
Cooperative Bank(City Hall
Branch) 0t 14t2324t7504 10.272

Sub- Total 31,00{i

d) Others(Specify)
Cash In Transit

Cash ln Hand

Unremifted Loan Repayments

Sub- Total

G rand Total 34,008

Notes to the Financial Statements Continuetl

t)ctailed analysis of the caslr ancl cash eclrrivalcrrts ar.c as tirllori s

13. Receivables frorn exchange transactions

45,77

45,77

45,77

18, r9(

34,65(

52,84(

553,50:

Current Receivables

lnterest Receivable 20,8t7

Current Loan Repayments Due 65,721

Other Exchange Debtors 2,076

Less: Impairment A I lowance

'l'otal Current Receiva bles 88,6 t 4

Non-Cu rrent Receiva bles

Long Term Loan Repayments Due 642,129

Total Non- Current Receivables 642,129

1A

553,50.

Financial lnstitution
I n".orn, number i__::rvrrn3

Kshs000

Fy202t/22

Kshs0lX)

FY2022123

I(shs000
Description

FYt02U22

Kshs000



NB:
A:;.se

Na Cily Counly Assembly Cur Loan and Morlgage Scheme Fund
.drnn po rt and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

730,,743

other exchange debtors ('onstitule of rece ivab lcs .fro nt loan balances o.f the )Dd

bly Members recove retl lhrutugh gratuitl, lhut wa:; renrilted thc L'ounty Assentbly

No to the Financial Statemerrts Continuecl

Ad onal disclosure on interest receivable

14. pay ments

15. ventories

606,34J'l'o I Receivables F rom Exchangc'l-r:rnsactions

lntr rest Receivable

Int€

loar

est receivable from current portion ol long{errn
s of previous years

Acr
pre

:ued interest receivable from of long-term loans of
ious years

lnte

loar

'est receivable from current portion of long-tcrrn
s issued in the current year

Cu rent loan repay nre n ts due

Cur lent portion of long{erm loans from previous years

Acr
pre

rued principal from long-terms loans lrom
'ious periods

Cu
yez

rent portion of long-term loans issued in the current

Pre :aid Rent

Prt :aid Insurance

Prt caid Electricity Costs

ot er Prepayments (Specrfy)

To al

Cr rsumable Stores

Sp 1re Parts And Meters

Ct .enng

or rer lnventories (Specify)

25

w202ln2

Iishs000

Fyz0ztnT

Kshs0{)0

FYZ022t23
Deccrtption

l(shs00t)

Fv202ln2

Kshs000



Nuinthi ('il.v Count.r' .4sscmhl.,r (ur Loun ottl lllortgulit,Scltt'nta l:utrl
Annual llcp()rt {n(l F inarrciirl Statcnrcnts lirr thc 1'c:r r cnrlcrl ,l u rrc 30. 2()2J

Notes to the Financial Stutcrucrrts Continued

l(r. lrrvcstments in financial usscts

(Entity should disclose vhether the .fixed investmenl Jinancial assels are measured at amortised cosl or at rt r
value through c hanges in net assels. equily) Inwstmenls in equity should be nteasured at fair vlue through surpr s
ot'dertciL Other information to be disclosed includes: lhe interest rotes, malurity dates. vtluation methodolol ',
and impairment of these investments.

Movement of Equity Investments

e) Shareholding in other entities
For investments in equity share listed above, li.st down the equity investments under t e

following categories:

cstment in Trcirsurv bills and bondsir. Inr
Finarrcial institution
CI}K
CI}K

SLrb- total
h. lnvestment rvith Financial lnstitutions/ llanks

lllrrrl., x

Bank y

Sub- total
c. Equity investmen ts (s pec ify)

Equity/ shares in Entity xxx

Sub- total
(l ra nd total

At the beginning ofthe year

Purchase of investments in the year

Sale of investments during the year
Gain(loss) in fair value of investments through surplus or
deficit

At the end of the year

.a Ks hs Kshs

Entity A
l,ntity B

26

Kshs

.lotul 
lnrentolies lrt'l htil.r,rrcl ol ( orl antl Net i

Ite:r liru lrlc \ :r ltro

FY20?tn2

l(shs(llX)

I r;rpr irment allolancc/ Irr(r1isiolt
w2022n3 Fy202tn2
Kshs00t) Kshs000

N u rrrc of lintitl'
rt' lr c re
irr vc.slnrcrrt is

h c ltl

N o of sharos

Norninal
r irluc of
slr n tcs

l;rr ir vnluc
rrl slr a rcs

Fair
value ol

slra res

Dire t't
shu rch olr I i

Indircct
sharclroltling

li ffcc t ivc
slrlrcholtling

('u l lcnl
ycil r

Prior'
ycar

FY202Zn3)csc ript ion
Ks lr s 00{)
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Noirobi City Countl Assembly Cur Loan anl Mortguge Scheme Fund
Ann ual Ilcport and Financial Statements for the year ended Jurre J0' 2023

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

17, Property, plant and equipment

I.Ghs

At l" July (Previous FY)
Add itions
Disposals

Transfers/Adj ustments

At 301h June (Previous FY)
At l"r July (Current FY)
Additions
Disposals

Transfer/Adj ustments

At 30'h June (Current FY)
Depreciation And lmpairment
At I " July (Previous FY)

Depreciation
Impairment

At 30'h June (Previuous FY)
At l"t July (Current FY)
Depreciation
Disposals

Impairment
Transfer/Ad justment

At 30rh June (Current FY)

At 30th June (Previuous FY)
a r lnth l"-- /arr rrah, f-v\

28

Land ond
Buildings_

Kshs
Motor vehiclcs

Kshs --SttiCgKshsCost

oIIice equipment
Furniture and Computers and

Kshs

Net Book Values

-J
-1

I



ol' 'f he Yea ro lnn tAt
Additions

At End ofThe Ycar

rtization Antl Im pairmentA
ofThe YearEE

rtrzatlon

nln

At E,nd of The Ycar

Impairment Loss

N nd of Thc Ycar

Atb :ginning of the yea r

Addi lions

rsal during the year

Depr eciation

lrnpe irrncnt

Gain '([oss) in fair value (if fair value is elected)

At er rd of the year

EEE

H

Na
An

hi City County Assemhl.l' Car Loun und fuIortguge Schenrc Furul
al Report and Financial Statements for the year ended .Iune 30' 202J

Not To The Financial Statements (Cbntinued)

Itt ta ngih le assc ts

19. vestment Property

(Fo nvestment property held at fair value, changes in fair value should go through the statement of
fin ial performance. Where cost model is elected, deprecation and impairment should not be charged.
Inve

fair
ent measured at fair value should be evaluated at the end of the reporting period for changes in

lue.). Entity should disclose the independent valuers, rental income from the investment property
,fan and the direct costs attributed to the investment property. Any charges on the investment property

ll as any difficulty in classifying this asset as an investment property.os

29

Description

Cost

FY2022t23 Fy202t t22

Kshs 000 Kshs 000

l) cs( riptio n
FY2,022t23 FY202U22

Kshs 000 IGhs 000



N'uirohi (-'ilt (.ttuttl-t' .4srcmhl.t' Cur Loutt trul lllortgugr: Scltuttt, l;untl
,\nnuul Rcport antl Firrancial Statcnrcnts lbr thc rcar cnrlcrl .lunc J(1. 202J

Notes 'l'o 'l'he tinancial St:rtenrents (('ontinuctl)

20. 'l ratle anrl othcr pirl ahles fronr crchangc trarrslctiorrs

(NB: Amount under deposits and retentions should tie to cash held in deposit accoun!)

21. l'rovisions

o4 of thr

Total

Tlade Payables

llc tir rrdable Deposits

Accrued Expenses

Other Payables
'[otal 'frade and C)ther l'ur.ables

Ageing analysis (Trade antl other
paya bles)

Current
FY

'2, of the

Total
Compa rativc

t.'Y

Under one year

l-2 years

2-3 years

Over 3 years
-l'otal (tie to above total)

[]alance At the Beginning Of lhe Year

Additional Provisions

I)rovision Utilised

Change Due To Discount And Time Value
For Money

Transfers From Non -Current Provisions

llalance At The End ol-fhe Year

l0

Description
t Y 2022t23

Kshs 000

FY202tn2

Kshs 000

I l.q'.e
provutlon

I-- 
-K"h"

Description Ylrrg!
Ksbs

lrtal_
IGhs

Bonus

Kshs

Other
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Not To The Financial Statements (Continued)

)) rrolvlngs

NB County Assembly had opening balance of Kshs.66,116,507 as tansfer borrowings

-fro

bi City County Assembly Cur Loan and Mortguge Schcme l-und
al Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

the scheme fund ctt the beginning of FY2022/23. The Assembly further made trarsfer
wings totaling to Kshs.l02,l5l,937 within the financial year giving total tansferfunds

bo edfrom the schemefund of Kshs.168,568,444. However, total of Kshs.108,022,392.50
III QS d back to the scheme fund resulting to a balance of Kshs.60,546,05 I .80

The ble below shows the classiflcation of borrolvings into external and domestic borrowings

Th table below shows the classification of borrowings long-term and current borrowings

lla lr rnce At Bcginning of The Period

Extr :rnal Borrowings [)uring thc Year

[)or restic Borrowings During the Year (Recurrent Borrowings) t02,t52 I 10,28i

274,288[)or restic Borrowings During the Year (Molor Vehicle Reimbursement)

Rep ayments Of External Borrowings During the Period

ttep

Bot
ayments Of Domestics Borrowings During the Period (Recurrent
rowings) ( r08,022) (43,866)

Ilal rnce At End of '[he l'eriod 66,417

Exlernal Borrowings

Dollar Denominated Loan From 'X Organization'

St{ting Pound Denominated Loan From 'Y
Orfanization'

Eu{o Denominated Loan from Z Organization'

Domestic Borrowings

Kepya Shilling Loan From KCB

Kenya Shilling Loan from Barclays Bank

Kenya Shitling Loan fiom Consolidated Bank

Bdrowings From Other Government Institutions

Tolal Balance at End ofThe Year

Sh )rt Term Borrowings (Current Portion)

I,C ng Term Borrowings

ll

I

F\',2022t23
Description

I.,shs 000 IGhs 000

Dr ption
FY2022t23

Kshs 000

F\'202V22

268,418

Description
Fy 20zlt22

Kshs 000

FY2022n3

Kshs 000



Nuinthi Cil.y Couttt.y ..ls.santhly ('or l-oan und l,lortguga Schanrc l;urt
Annual Rclxrrt anrl hinancial Statcmcnts I'o r the vear urrlctl .lune J().2(123

(l l); the total of lhis slaunent ';horlcl tie to nole 2 2 tt)tdl.\ ('un'cnt prtrrion of hor.rotrirr5;s urc tho:;e borrovin ,;

a: per |PS.4.S 1l)

1

1

)-

olal



a i Ci1) Count! Assembly Car Loutt und Morlguge Schemc Fund
Ann lReport and Financial Statements ftrr the year ended June 30,202J

Not To The Financial Statements (Continucd)

23 plol'e e bc nclit obligatiorts

24. ial llenelit Li.tbilities

benefit schemes include benefits such as cash transfers for unemployment or elderly in line with
42. They are incurred lo mitigate against a certain social risk e.g poverty, age, unemployment
others.amo

Soci

Kshs Kshs KshsKshs K.shs

Curr
obti

ent Bencflt
gation

Non
Ben

'Current
:fit Obligation

Totr I

Hea th social benefit scheme

Uni nployment social benefit scherne

orp raned and vulnerable benefit schemc

Eld rly social benefit scheme

Bur iary social benefits
'l'ot rl

Cut 'ent social benefits

Nor - current social benefits

Tol rl (tie to totals abovc)

JJ

Description
Defined
benefit

Post
employme
nt medical

benefib
Other

Provisions

lDsrrt
Clompa ru t ir c

FY
lnsert

Current FY

Description
w2022t23

Kshs 000

Fy202rn2

Kshs 000



,\'uinthi ('itt'Count.r -.lsstnrhl.t' ('ur htun un llorlgugt'St.hantt, l;un
r\nnual llcport an(l l;inancinl Statcnrcnts lirr thc rear cnrlcrl ,lu rr e J(1.2{123

L

Notcs 'l'o .l'hc 
Financial St:ltclncnts (('ontinuctl)

25. (':rsh gencratcrl fronr opcrutions

(The total of this statentent should tie to the cash.flott.section on net ca.\h flot,s.from
operaling aclivities)

Surplus/ (DeIicit) For the Ycnr lleforc Tar
Adjustetl For:

[)epreciation

A mort isation

Gains/ l-osses On Disposal Of Assets

lnterest lncome

lVorking Capital Arl.j ustments

lj inancc Cost

lncrease ln Inventory

Increase In Receivables

lncrease ln Payables

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities

i4

F\'}0ZZ|ZJ F \',202t t22
Description

I(shs 000 Kshs 000
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Not To fhe Financial Statements (Continuctl)

26 elatctl partv bu la n ccs

a) aturc of relaterl party relationships

ies and other parties related to the Fund include those parties who havc ability to exercrse

I or exercise signiticant influence over its operating and tlnancial decisions. Related
[rn t

con
pa s include managernent personnel, thcir associates and close tarnily members. The

fun scheme is related to the following entities

a) he County Governrnent;
b) e Parent County Government Ministry;
c ey management;

oard of Trustees; etcd)

lr) elated pa rty transactions

c) ey managenlent remuneration

d) Due from related parties

Tr rnsfers From Rclated Parties'

Tr lnsfers To Related Parties

Br rard Of Trustees

K, :y Management Compensation

Tr rtal

D re From Parent Ministry

D ue From County Government
't otal

35

Description
FY20Z2n3 wz02tn2

Kshs 000 Kshs 000

Description
FY2022tZ3 FY202U22

Kshs 000Kshs 000

Description
FY2027tZ3

Kshs 000

Fy202UZ2

Kshs 000



Nuinthi Cilt' ( ttuttt-l' ..l.sscmhl.l' ('ur l-outt urttl illorlgugc ,stltantc liuttl
Annual Report antl I inancial Stirtcmcnts lirr the yea r cntlctl .lurrc J(). 2023

I

Othcr l)isclosurcs (lorr tirr u erl

c) l)uc to rclatcrl [)ill tie\

27. Onntingent assets and contingent liabilities

(Give details)

[)ue '['o 
Parent Ministry

Due To County' Governnrcrrt

Due To Key Managcrnent Personnel

'fotnl

Court Case Xxx Against the Fund

[]ank Guarantees
-l'otll

.16

I wzozzns

I x"nr ooo

('orr tingent Li:r lrilities
w202?,/23 I

Ksh-s 000

l)cscription I wzozrnzt_I Kshs fiX)

nn02tn2
Kshs 000



I Nairobi Cit.t' Counly Assemhly Cur Loan arul Mortguge Schemc Funtl
Annual Rcllort and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,2021

Notes'l'o -fhe Financial Statcments (Continued)

28. Financial risli manrtgcmcn t

"l'he fund's activities expose it to a varietl, of financial risks including credit and liquidity' risks

and qft-ects of changes in fbreign currency. 'l'he lrund's overall risk management prograrntne

locu{es on unpredictability of'changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the

pote{tial adverse eft'ect of such risks on its pertbrmance by setting acceptable levels of risk.
The fund does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only
exterided to customers with an established credit history.

I

The hund's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

a) Credit risk

The Fund has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be r.rnable to pay

amounts in lLrll when due. Credit risk arises frorn cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with
banks, as well as trade and other receivables and availab le-for-sale tlnancial investments.
ManAgement assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
posifon, past experience and other factors. lndividual risk limits are set based on internal or
extemal assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in
the siatement olfinancial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by
the cntity's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current
econpmic environment. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial
statelnents representing the entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of the value of any collateral obtained is made up as follows:

Batk Balances

Total

@Blfhe btals column should tie to the individual elements of credit ri.rk disclosed in the
entib's statement of financial position)

Re(eivables From Non-Exchange
Tr*rsactions

Bank tsalances

T'otal

Re0eivables From Exchange
Tr*rsactions

At 30 June 2021

Redeivables From Non-Exchange
Tr*rsactions

Descriptiorr
Total
nnr ount
I(shs

I

Fully
performing
Kshs

Pnst due I Im paired
I(shs hs

At 30 June 2022

Receivables From Exchange
Transactions

tt



;\uiruhi ('it.r' ('ttunty A.sttmhl).(-ur Loan un .llttrt,gu!:c St.ltcnrc l'unl
r\nnuirl ltcport antl I irrarrciirl Statcnre nts lirr thc \crrr cnde(l ,lunc -]0. 2l)2,3

Notes'l'o The Financial Statements (Continued)

The custorners under the tully pertorrning catd!.lorv arc paying their detrts as they continr :
trading.'['he credit risk associated with thesc leceivables is rninimal and the allo',vance l] r
ultcollectible amounts that the entity has recogrrised in the financial statements is considert I
adequate to cover any potentiall) irrecoverablc atnounts.

The entity has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due tiorn

The board ol trttstees sets the [:und's credit policies and ob.iectives and lays down paramete ;
within which the various aspects of credit risk rnanagernent are operated.

b) Liquidity risk management

Ultirnate responsibility for liquidity risk managernent rests with the Fund Adrninistrator, wl I
has built an appropriate liquidity risk managernent framework for the rrranagement of tl :
entity's short, rnedium and long-tertn funding and liquidity lxanagenrent requirenrents. TI :
entity manages liquidity risk through continuous rnonitoring of forecasts and actual cash flow

The table below represents cash flows payable by the Fund under non-derivative financial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2
months equal their carrying balances, as the itnpact of discounting is not significant.

Employee Benefi t Obtigation

'l'otal

I

At 30 June (Current FY)

Trade Payables

Current Portion Of' Borrowings

Provisions

Employee Beneftt Obligation

Iotal

At 30 June (Comparative FY)

Trade Payables

Current Portion Of Borrowings

Provisions

)6

Less thirrr I I Betrvecn l-
Description month 3 months Total

Kshs Kshs I(shs

()r'cr 5

months

Kshs
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

c) Market risk

The board has put irr place an internal audit tunction to assist it in assessing the risk faced by
the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and ef'tectiveness of its interrral
accounting and opcrational controls.

Ma t risk is the risli. arising from changes in rnarket prices, such as interest rate, equity prices
reign exchange rates which will aft'ect the entity's income or the value of its holding of'

cial instruments. The objective of rnarket risk management is to manage and control
t risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optirnising the return. Overall

rcs sibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Comrnittee

hi City County Assembly Car Loun und Mortguge Scheme Fund
al Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

Fund's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk

[gement policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management
lmittee) and fbr the day{o-day implementation of those policies.

te has been no change to the entity's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
ages and measures the risk.

Ioreign currcncy risk

entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of
is and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices
lminated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days frorn the date of the invoice and

rersion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

carrying amount of the entity's tbreign currency denominated monetary assets and
etary liabilities at the end ofthe reporting period are as follows:

and
fina
mar

'lhc

ntaD
( on'

'[ her

rnan

The
goo(

denr
cont

't'he

nton

t Foreign Cu rrcncy AsseU(Liability)
7',he Fund manages foreign exchange risk form future commercial transactions and recognised assels and

lilies by projectingJor expected sales proceeds and matching the same with expected payments

At 30 June (Current FY)

Fir rancial Assets

In' 'estments

Ca sh

D( btors/ Receivables

Li a bilities

'lr ade And Other Payables

Ilr trrowlngs

Nr

lia
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Description

Ksh s

Oth cr'

curlencies

l(shs

Total

Kshs
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

Foreign currenc)' sensitil it)' analysis

T'he ibllowing table demonstrates the et't'ect on thc Fund's staterllcnt of tlnancial perhrrnran, :
on applying the sensitivity tbr a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate of the thrr l
main trartsaction currencies, '"vith all other variables held constant. The reverse would al: I
occur ilthe Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constarrt.

ii. Interest rate risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the entity's financial conditiorr rnay be adversely affbcted as I
result ofchanges in interest rate levels. The entity's interest rate risk arises lrom bank deposir ,.

This exposes the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. The irrterest rate risk exposure aris s

mainly from interest rate movements on the Fund's deposits.

Managemenl of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, rnanagernent has endeavoured to bank with institutions th t
offer favourable interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The Fund analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivi y

analysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss ol defined rate shitts. Tl e

sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all othcr variables, in particular foreil r
exchange rates, remain constant. -fhe anatysis has been pertbrrned on the same basis as t. e

prior year. Using the end of the year figures, the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on t e

statement oI comprehensive income iI current floating interest rates increase/decrease by o e

percentage point as a decrease/increase olKshs xxx (2022: Kshs xxx ). Arate increase/decrea e

of 50% would result in a decrease/inc rcasc in profit before tax ol Kshs xxx (202 I - Kshs xxx

t

(Current FY)

Euro t0%

USt) t0%

(Comparative FY)

Euro t0%

USD t0%

40

Effcct on s u r';r lus/
deficit

l)e.scription
(ihange irr

currency ru tc

Kshs

hflect orr

.11!l]'

KshsKshs
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Not To The Financial Statements (Continued)

29.

The

30.

vents after the reporting period

were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period'

Itimate and Holding Entity

The tity is a County Public Fund established by the Salaries and Remuneration Circular no

SR S/WB/3/14 o[ l4'r' February Z0l4 and derives its authority and accountability from
Sec on 167 of the Public Finance Management Act2012.lts ultimate parent is the County
Go rnment of Nairobi

31.

The

urrency

nancial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs)

Ret aluation reserve

640,0001,0 r6,000olving fundRer

Ac< 85,7 t2

1,101,,712 718,404Tol
'umulated surp lus

al fu rr tls

Tot al borrowings

49.37634,008Les s: cash and bank balances

669,028t,067,704Nel debV(excess cash and cash cquivalents)

669,028I,067 ,704Gei rrrng

4t

d) $apital risk rnanagement.

I

Thebbiective ot'rhe Fund's capital risk rnanagement is to saleguard the Fund's ability to

contlnue as a going concern. The entity capital stntcture comprises ol the following tunds:

ttY2022/23
Description

Kshs 000

w202tn2

Kshs 000

78,404
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20. Annexes

Annex l: Progress on Follorv Up Of Prior Year Auditor's llccom mcntlations
-l 

he tbllowirrg is the suttrtttary of issues raised b!' the extcrnal auditor. alld rnanasernellt c( nlmclts

that were provided to the auditor.

a,

OAGNCC/C
A/CLMF202I
120221(33)

Variance in
Interest
lncome:
The statement of
financial
perfo rmance
reflects interest
income of
Kshs.r9,967,ooo,
as disclosed in
Note 4 to the
financial
statements.
However, an
independent
recalculation
from details in
the supporting
analysis provided
for audit yielded
an interest of
Kshs.22,392,67o,
against the
interest of
Kshs.r9,967,ooo
reflected in the
financial
statements
resulting to a

variance o[
Kshs.z,4z5,67o
which was not
explained or
reconciled.

The total interest
generated from the
schenre funcl
operations for the
period ended Joth
f rtne zozz amountecl
to I(shs.r9,967,ooo
which consisted of
interest from staff
loans amounting to
I(shs.17,375,185, [or
MCAs of
I(shs.r,zE4,r4r and
the bank interest
was l(shs.r,3o6,77g.
This is contained in
the statement of
fina n c ial
p e r[o rrnance
through the revised
financiaI statements
shared with the
Office of the Auditor
General on rltl'
January, zoz3.

Not Resolved

(Pending

review by the
(.'ounty

Assembly

Public
Accounts

Committee)

February 024

42

Ilcfcrencc
No. on thr
external

a urlit Report

lssue /
C)bservations

fronr Auditor

I\lanagcment
c0m m en t.\

l'irr r c t'r'r nre :

(l'ttl o uta

n'lttn . ,t tt

e.rptct lh, issuc

-I

Sta t us:

(Resrtlvcd /
l'1r,

Rcxilved)
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Variance in
Principal Loan
Repayment
Records: The
statement of
cashflows reflects
proceeds from
loan principal
repayments of
I(shs.rrr,959,ooo
while the total
repayments as

per the individual
repayment
ledgers was
l(shs.ro3,6o4,577.
The latter was
made up of
I(shs.36,42r,o44
and
I(shs.67,r83,533
flrom the staff
members and
Members of the
Counry
Assembly,
respectively. This
resulted to
unreconciled
variance of
IGhs.8,354,423.
Further, review of
extracts of the
payroll indicated
that principle
and interest

Payments
amounted to
Kshs.rr5,rrr,u3.
However, the
statement of

The computation of
monthly loan
repayments for both
Members and Staff
indicated the
principal loan
repayments for the
period under review
amounting to
I(shs.99,588,o86.
This amount consist
of MCAs Car Loan of
l(shs3z,V9,o37,
MCAs Mortgage of
I(shs.35,rrr,839, Staff
Mortgage of
Kshs.z7,994,oro and
Staff Car Loan of
I(shs.3,7o3,r99.
The statement of
financial
p erformance
requires
presentation of
information on the
interest income for
the period under
review and not the
total principal loan
repayments. In view
of this, the fund
generated total
interest of
I(shs.r9,967,ooo
from the 3olo interest
chargeable and
bank accrued
interest.

43

llefcrencc
No. on thc

erternal
audit Report

Issrrc /
()bscrr a tions

frorn Autlitor

Sta tus:
(Ra:xtlrad,/

R cxtlve d)

'l'imc l'ra m c:

(Put u dut(
x'lrcn 

-1'tt 
u

e.\Pect th( issuc

lo he resrth,ccl)

Managcment
commcnts

_L
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rlt(j :

ulc

l
ir:i ue
trc)

performance
reflects inte rest
payment ol
I(shs.r9,966, ooo
resulting to a

balance of
principal
rePaymen t of
IGhs.95,r45,rr3.
This differs with
the balance
reflected in the
statement of cash
flows as proceeds
from loan
principal
repayments of
I(shs.ur,959,ooo
resulting to a

variance o[
IGhs.r6,8r3,886,
between the two
sets of records.
This
inconsistency
berween the
records has
neither been
explained nor
reconciled.

Inconsistenc y
in Loan
Records: The
statement of
cashflows reflects
interest received
and proceeds
from loan
principal

The fund operations
registered
Kshs.99,5EE,o86 as
princ ipal
repayments and
interest of
I(shs.r8,659,326 from
the 3% charge on
loan balances giving
a total of

Not Resolved

(Pending

review by the

County

Assembly

Public

Accounls

Commitlee)

+

Februarv 024

repayments of

44
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lleferen ct
No. un tlre
crternirl

uudit Rcl){)rt

lssue /
Obserr ations
from.\utlilor

Status:
(Rcxtlveil /

Rc.utlvc )

'I'inrcfr:

(Pul o t

n,hen 1

expact tht
lo he rest

lUa n agcmcn t
com me n ts

,- _L



)
hi Cit_v County Assemhly Cur Loun and Morlguge Scheme FundNo

An al ort and Financial Statements for the year cnded June 30, 2023e

I(shs. r9,966, ooo
and
I(shs. rrr,959,ooo
respectively, both
totaling
I(shs. r3r,9z5,ooo.
Extracts of
payroll schedules
provided flor

audit revealed
total loans flrom
members and
staff of
I(shs.n5,rrr,u4
while summary of
the individual
loan ledgers
reflected total
receipts of
I(shs.rz4,69o,46r.
The Management
has not
reconciled or
explained the
variance between
the three sets of
records.

I(shs.u8,z47,4rz as
total loan
repayments. The
total repayments is
composed of the
loan repayments
recovered through
the Assernbly
payroll which
totaled to
Kshs.r13,,59r,r9r and
I(shs.4,656,zzr being
loan repayments off
the payroll system
including rtnder
deductions issues.
The under
deduction issues
have since been
amended. The off
payroll system
repayments are for
Members of scheme
who have since
transferred their
services from the
CountyAssembly.

The total current
portion of long term
receivables from
non-exchange
transactions
amounted to
Kshs.5z,84o,ooo
which comprised of
receivables from
MCAs mortgage of
Kshs.r,z65,ooo,
MCAs car loan of

Inaccuracies in
Receivables:
The statement of
financial position
reflects current
portion and long-
term receivables
from exchange
transactions of
I(shs.5z,84o,ooo
and
kshs.553,5o3,, ooo

Not Resolved

(Pending

review by the

County

Assembly

Public

Accounts

Committee)

February 2024

45

Rel'e rc tr ce

No. orr tlte

cr lc rtt it I

audit ll cport

Issuc /

Observations
fnrm Auditor'

Managcment
c() m me nts

Status:
( Resolveil /

Not

Resolved)

Tinreframe:
(Put u lutc
whett rou

e.rpecl lhe issue

lo be rextlved)
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indicated I(shs.5z,84o,ooo as
receivables contained under
balance of note rz of the

totaling to
kshs.6o6,343,ooo,
as disclosed in
No te rz to the
financial
statements. An
independent

Precomputatio ns

I(shs.639,994,ooo
resulting to a

variance of
I(shs.33,65r,ooo
which was not
explained or
reconciled. The
statement [urther
reflects total
receivables of
I(strs.67z,z5o,ooo
as at
ln the
circumstances,
the accuracy and
completeness oI
the receivables
totaling to
IGhs.6o6,343,ooo
could not be

confirmed.

I(shs.69,ooo, Staf[
mortgage of
I(shs.47,o5z,ooo and
staff car loan of
I(shs.4,45,4,ooo.'I'[re
recast of curre llt
portion of long term
leceivables is

financial
staternents
Further long ternr
receivables fronr
exchange
transactions sunl
rrpto
I(shs.553,5oz,ooo
comprised of Staff
Moltgage of
I(shs.544,986,ooo
and staff car loan of
I(shs.8,516,ooo. 'fhe
total receivables flor
the period under
consideration is
Kshs.6o6,343,ooo <1s

contained in Note. 3
of the financial
statements.

I naccurate
Statement of
Changes in Net
Assets: The
statement ol
changes in net
assets reflects

The statement of
changes in net
assets for the periorl
trnder consideratio ll
were reviewed anil
revised through the

Not Resolved

(Pending

ravicw by the

Co unty

Assembly

P uhlic

February. )24

46

ll.efercn ce

No. on thc

cxternal
audit llcput't

Issuc /

Ohscrr a tions
fronr Auditor

Status:
(Rcxth,cd /

Not
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'l'imefri

(Pul u r

n'hctr.1

expecl lh(
lo he re.st

Ma n agemen t
commcnts

ne:
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revolving fund
balance of l(shs.

7r4,8o3, ooo.
However',
recasting across
of the balance
brought [orward
as at l July, zozo
results to an
amount of IGhs.

7r4,o68,ooo while
the resulting to
an unexplained
variance o[
I(shs.5,5r5,ooo.
Further, the
statement
reflects surplus
for the year
zozofzozr ol
IGh.735,ooo.
However, the
statement of
financial
performance
reflects a prior
year surplus
amount of Kshs.

37t,ooo.

shared revised
financial
stateme nts.

Accounls

Contntittee)

However, an extract
of the statement of
changes in net
assets has been
.lttached for review.

(i)

(ii

G e Noles:

Use the same reference numbers as contained in the external audit report.

Obtain the "lssue/Observation" and "management comments", required above, from final

external audit report that is signed by Management.

Before approving the report, discuss the tirneframe with the appointed Focal Point

persons within your Fund responsible for implementation of each issue.

(ii

47

Referencc
No. on tht
cxtcrnal

audit Re Jrort

lssur /

Ollscrr a tions

fronr r\ utlitor

Status:
(Raxtlved /

Not

Rcsolved)

Timcl'ramc:
(Put u tfuta

n,hert.l'ou

c-rpecl tltc issue

fu he re .rolved)

Ntanagcment
corn ments
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(iv) lrrclicatc the status ol "l{csolrcd" or ..Not Resolrcd trr tlre clatc ol'suhrrrittirrg this r.ep, 11

to National Treasu rv

Furrd Nl gcr /Accountirrq ( ){'llccr (('lcrk )

l)ir tr: a.b.tlzn*k

48
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Annex II: Inter-Fund Confirmation Letter
Nairobi City Counly Assembly Cor Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fund

Nairobi City County Assembly- Recurrent Account
P.O Box 45844-00100
The Nairobi City County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Fznd wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 30th June 2023

as indicated in the table below. Please compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the coltrmn E in the

table below Please sign and stamp this request in the space provided and return it to us.

Amounts Disbursed by Nairobi City County Assembly Scheme Fun

s) as at 30'h June2023(Ksh
d

Differences
(KShs)

(F)=(D-E)
Total

(D)=(A+B+C)

Amount Received by
Nairobi City County
Assembly Recurrent

Account
(KShs) as at i0'h June 2023

(E)

lnter-
M in isterial

(c)

Devetopment (B)Date
Disbursed

Recurrent
(A)

Reference
N um ber

031,029,93731,029,93731,029,93705.08.2022
(_)1,300,000r,300,000t9.08.2022 1,300,000
038,220,000 38,220.00038,220,00007.10.2022
0il,000,000il,000,00024.12.2022 r 1,000,000
020,000,000 20,000,00020,000,00013.01.2023
020,000,00020,000,00020,000,00014.03.2023
0@102*151.937r 02,15!.937Total

In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated

n
61tc').*teDa I

Head of Accountants department of beneficiarv Fund:

Nu,n"....t-ld+. rp-.......:k.r-n ...... s

19

Confirmation of amoutrts received by County Assembty Recurrent Account as at 30th June 2023
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Annex III: Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures

Q3 Q4Ql Q2

i

I50

t-

Project
Name

P rr-, j ect
Descrirrtion

Px.rject
Ob iectives

Project
Activities

l

I

So*.'.aoa I

Funds I

Irnplemcntins
P:trtncrs

I
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NB. The County Assembty did not have disaster management expenditure during the year FY2022/23

5t

Anner IV: Reporting on Disaster Management Erpenditure

Amount
(Kshs.)

C'olLrrnn V Colurnn V IColumn III Colrrmn lVColr-rmn I Colurnn II

Com rnents

Colu rn n

VII
Expenditure
rtellr

Disaster
Type

Category of disaster related Activity that

require expenditure repcrrlitrg
Program me

)/m t I

programm e

ub-

(re


